
City of San Leandro

Meeting Date: April 6, 2020

Staff Report

Agenda Section:File Number: 20-107 CONSENT CALENDAR

Agenda Number: 8.G.

TO: City Council

FROM: Jeff Kay
City Manager

BY: Liz Warmerdam

Interim Finance Director

Assistant City Manager

FINANCE REVIEW: Liz Warmerdam

Interim Finance Director

TITLE: Staff Report for a City of San Leandro City Council Resolution to Approve 

Amendment No. 2 to the Term of the Agreement between the City of San 

Leandro and Chandler Asset Management for Investment Services through June 

30, 2021, to Add an Additional $40,000 per Fiscal Year for a total of $115,000 

per Fiscal Year, and to Approve Appropriation of $40,000 per Fiscal Year from 

the General Fund Fund Balance

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Staff recommends the City Council review and approve Amendment No. 2 to the Term of the 

Agreement and amount of compensation between the City of San Leandro and Chandler Asset 

Management for investment services through June 30, 2021.

Staff further recommends the City Council approve an additional appropriation of $40,000 per 

fiscal year (2019-20 and 2020-21) from the General Fund fund balance.

BACKGROUND

On October 3, 2016, the City Council approved a consulting services agreement with Chandler 

Asset Management for investment services of City funds through June 30, 2020.  Chandler was 

selected based on its ability to assist the City in developing an investment management program 

that established appropriate durations of investments based on the City’s cash flow needs, and 

that was aligned with the City’s conservative investment approach.

 

Analysis

Over the last three and one-half years, Chandler Asset Management has provided the following 

services to the City:
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· Full-time management of the City’s investment portfolio;

· Development and implementation of investment strategies that enhance the City’s portfolio 

performance within the parameters of the City's Investment Policy and California State law;

· Assist City staff in reviewing and updating, at least annually, the City's Investment Policy to  

ensure all regulatory updates are included, and the City’s evolving priorities are reflected in 

the portfolio;

· Monthly consultation with City staff regarding the City’s cash flow needs, investment 

opportunities and market conditions;

· Trade execution, trade confirmation and trade settlement with City’s safekeeping bank;

· Monitoring of creditworthiness of investments;

· Monthly and quarterly reporting and analysis of investment holdings and performance; and

· Adherence to the City’s over-arching investment philosophy of Safety, Liquidity and Yield.

Over the years, the amounts invested in the City’s portfolio ranged from a low of $27.8 million in 

Fiscal Year 2010, to a high of $110.6 million as of February 29, 2020.  

Chandler’s current contract runs through June 30, 2020.  They are paid based on the value of the 

investment portfolio.  The first $15 million of assets under management costs the City 0.125% of 

1%.  Assets in excess of $15 million costs the City 0.09% of 1%.  The average annual amount 

paid to Chandler for services provided over the past three years has been $65,000.  

Chandler has provided excellent service to the City and consistently protects its investments.

Previous Actions

· October 3, 2016 Resolution 2016-124 approving the Consulting Services Agreement with 

Chandler Asset Management, Inc. for investment management of the City of San 

Leandro’s funds

· September 17, 2018 Resolution 2018-110 approving Amendment No. 1 of the Consulting 

Services Agreement with Chandler Asset Management, Inc. for investment management 

of the City of San Leandro’s funds

Fiscal Impact

The investment program costs have ranged from $30,000 to $75,000 depending on the total 

investment amount.  The average annual cost for the past three years has been $65,000. As a 

result of the size of the portfolio, the contract with Chandler requires an additional $40,000 

through the end of the current Fiscal Year (2020). It is expected that the contract will cost a total of 

$115,000 for Fiscal Year 2020.

Budget Authority

The budget for Fiscal Year 2020 is $75,000.  Staff recommends City Council approve 

appropriation of funds from the General Fund fund balance of $40,000 for Fiscal Year 2019-20 

and $40,000 for Fiscal Year 2020-21.
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ATTACHMENT

Consulting Services Agreement between the City of San Leandro and Chandler Asset 

Management

PREPARED BY:  Elizabeth Warmerdam, Interim Finance Director

Page 3  City of San Leandro Printed on 4/1/2020

90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A Provide full-time modified discretionary management of the portion of the investment 
portfolio under management (weekly consultation with City for direction on account 
management). All securities and funds under management of the Adviser shall be held in 
the name of the City, and shall be held by the City's Safekeeping Agent. 

B. Develop and implement investment strategies that will enhance portfolio performance 
under current and future market conditions within the parameters of the City's Investment 
Policy, California State law and cash flow needs. 

C. Provide technical and fundamental market research including yield curve analysis. 

D. Obtain and document competitive pricing for security transactions. 

E. Manage and document trade settlements. 

F. Assist City staff in reviewing and updating, at least annually, the City's Investment 
Policy and Cash Flow Forecast. 

G. Perform due diligence reviews of all current and proposed broker/dealers. 

H. Monitor the creditworthiness of the City's depository and custodian bank and the 
investments in the portfolio. 

I. Work with the City in developing and maintaining a cash flow forecasting system to 
determine investment requirements. 

J. Provide monthly investment reports for the portfolio detailing securities holdings, daily 
activity reconciliation, portfolio composition and sector analyses, portfolio return and 
weighted average maturities. Reports should consolidate funds under control of Adviser 
and funds held by City in LAIF or similar authorized investment pools. 

K. Provide separate semi-annual and annual portfolio performance reports. 

L. Provide electronic access to portfolio information including up-to-date market pricing. 

M. Provide training to staff on cash, treasury and investment management subjects. 

N. Meet with City investment and management staff at least quarterly, and as required with 
City Council Finance Committee. 

Consulting Services Agreement between City of San Leandro and 
Chandler Asset Management for Investment Services 

7/1/2016 
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EXHIBIT B 

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE & REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 

Assets Under Management Annual Investment ManaQement Fee 
First $15 million of assets under management 0.125of1% (12%basispoints 
Assets in excess of $15 million 0.09 of 1 % (9 basis points) 

Consulting Services Agreement between City of San Leandro and 
Chandler Asset Management for Investment Services 

7/1/2016 
Exhibit B - Page 1 of 1 
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City of San Leandro

Meeting Date: April 6, 2020

Resolution - Council

Agenda Section:File Number: 20-109 CONSENT CALENDAR

Agenda Number:

TO: City Council

FROM: Jeff Kay
City Manager

BY: Liz Warmerdam

Interim Finance Director

Assistant City Manager

FINANCE REVIEW: Liz Warmerdam

Interim Finance Director

TITLE: RESOLUTION of the City Council of the City of San Leandro Approving 

Amendment No. 2 to the Term of the Agreement between the City of San 

Leandro and Chandler Asset Management for Investment Services through June 

30, 2021 and Adding an Additional $40,000 per Fiscal Year for a total of 

$115,000 per Fiscal Year

WHEREAS, amendment no. 2 to an agreement between the City of San Leandro and 

Chandler Asset Management for Investment Services effective March 1, 2020, a copy of which is 

attached, is presented to this Council; and

WHEREAS, the City Council is familiar with the contents thereof.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of San Leandro does RESOLVE as follows:

That said document is hereby approved and accepted.
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AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF SAN LEANDRO AND 

 
Chandler Asset Management 

FOR 
Investment Services 

 
 

This Amendment No. 1 (“Amendment”) is made by and between the City of San Leandro (“City”) 
and _Chandler Asset Management_ (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of 
March 1, 2020, and amends that certain Consulting Services Agreement (“Agreement”) dated  July 1, 2016, 
between the Parties. 

 
WHEREAS, City and Consultant have executed the Agreement, pursuant to which Consultant has 

provided certain consulting services to City with regard to Investment Services, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire to amend the Agreement to June 30, 2021. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 
 
1. Section 1.1 of the Agreement entitled “Term of Services” is hereby amended to extend the 

term from July 1, 2016, to June 30, 2021; and 
 
2. Section 2 of the Agreement entitled “Compensation” is hereby amended to pay Consultant a 

sum not to exceed $230,000; and 
 
3. Exhibit A of the Agreement entitled “Scope of Services” is hereby amended to read: 
 

a. See Exhibit A 
 
4. Exhibit B of the Agreement entitled “Compensation Schedule & Reimbursable Expenses” is 

hereby amended to read:  
 

a. See Exhibit B 
 
5. All other terms shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an original and 

all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 
 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 
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The Parties have executed this Amendment as of the date first written above.  The persons whose 
signatures appear below certify that they are authorized to sign on behalf of the respective Party. 
 
 
CITY OF SAN LEANDRO  Chandler Asset Management 
 
 
    
Jeff Kay, City Manager Nicole Dragoo, JD, IACCP 

COO, Chief Compliance Officer 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
  
Leticia I. Miguel, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Fiscal Authority: 
 
 
  
Elizabeth D. Warmerdam, Interim Finance Director 
 
  
Account Number  
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
  
Richard D. Pio Roda, City Attorney 
 
 
(2018) 
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